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HE STUDY of Geography,appealing as it does to the pictorial or imagina-
tive faculty, must ever be a subject of unusual interest to the child
Eapeclally is this the case when it is taught by some natural, henco,

scientific  method. One such metho! is recognized to be, ‘beg g
with the known to the pupil and proceeding to the unknown by easy
and logical steps.” In order to this, the study of the child’s surroundings
becomes a necessiiy at an early age. After the School Section and Township
have been studied, the County comes next in order. As the County is larger,
and has a more plex organization, an extended and hat fuller study‘
of it serves to preparo the way for the wider course which embraces countries,

continents and the world itself. Heretofore,the necessary information con-
cerning the County of Grey was nut available to teachers, hence some difficulty
was experienced in preparing Second Class pupils for this wider course in
Cleography as well as for the local Geography required at promotion examina-
tions. Itis hoped that this littlo handbook will supply all the geographical
facts of the county which teachers may find advisable to teach, or pupils find
useful to learn.

The acreage of the different municipalities was taken from the maps in
the Registry Office and from the last official County Valuation, made in 1883.

The population of most of tha Townships was taken from the Dominion
Census of 1891; that of the Towns and Villages from local sources or from
Might's Gazetteer and Directory of Ontario (1898.) This latter work, and W.
W. Smith’s Gazetteer of Grey County (1865) were frequently consulted in the
preparation of these notes.

Thanks are due to R. J. Doyle Esq., Owen Sound, for facts concerning
Shallow Lake in Keppel ; to the Reeves of many of the Townships for points of
interest relative to their raspective municipalities, particularly the nature of
the surface, soil and products ; to John Rutherford Esq., County Clerk and 8-

+

J. Parker Esq., County Treasurer, for assi in obtaining a true
of the early history of the County, to the Registrars of North and South Grey
for more accurate information concerning Municipal boundaries and to many
other personal friends for information without which the pamphlet would be
incomplete.
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The Gounty of Grey.

Position and Boundaries.
VDBV

3 & HE COUNTY of Grey occupies the central part of the upper lake region of

A Ontario lying between Lake Huron and Lake Simcoe, usually known as

he Northern Peninsula. It is bounded on the North by Georgian Bay, on the

@ East by the counties of Simcoe and Dufferin, on the South by the counties of

Dufferin and Wellington and on the West by the County of Bruce.

in the year One
'AMPRELL, in the

Physical Features and Scenery.
DD

HE SURFACE of the County p & pleasing picture of ' ““woods ‘and
waters, fertile slopes, mountains and valleys.” ' It cannot be said of Grey
as of some of 'the Western Counties of the Province, that there is ‘‘no fine:
scenery.”  Several heights of land run 'in almost parallel ridges' in & south 3
westerly direction, backwards into the Northern Townships from near: the
shore of Georgian Bay. Aifearly writer thus describes these: ‘From a dis-
tance, on' Georgian Bay, three ‘mountains’ ave conspicuonsly visible in the
coast line of Grey ; the heights in rear of Cape Rich and Vails Point at' the
~ entrance of ‘Owen’s Sound—the ‘St. Vincent, Mountain’ in: rearof Meaford,
dividing the valley of the Big Head River from the valley of -the Beaver—and
‘Collinswdod ; Mountain’ in the Township of that name; dividing the valley of
the Beaver from the area  drained by the Nott aga. The, iatter ridge,
more particularly designated as the Blue Mountains attains the notinsignificant
altitude of . 1500 feet: above the sea or over 900. feet above the level of the
lake,” The. view. from shese height. is exceedingly varied and picturesque. In
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the Western and Southern Townships, except Proton, the surface is undulating
or hilly and is not wholly wanting in attractive scenery. The high plateau to
the South east, occupied by the Townships of Osprey, Proton, Melancthon (in
Dufferin Co.) and part of Artemesia is generally level. © This upland, rising in
the South of Osprey‘u} a height:of 12000r 1250 ¢, above’ Georgian Bay or about

tamarac swamp out of which the headwaters of the various rivers ¢‘ooze in

sluggish rivulets,” or rise at once from springs which form ‘‘magnificent foun-

tain heads.” It is but'riecessary to trace the course of the Grande, Nottawa-

saga, Saugeen and Beaver Rivers, Which-have their sources in this plateau to
show: that here!is:to be:found the highest point in Sonthern Ontavio,

Early Settlement and Surveys.
D> D ¥

@HE TERRITORY comprising the County of Grey (including the Township

of Melancthon) was a real ‘‘Canadian Wilderness” up to the year1830. In

this year, the foar' Eastern concessions of “Melanctlion were sutveyed, but for
some ten years later, it is said, the Township ‘‘had not a single resident.” In
the spring of 1834, the first clearing, within the limits of the present county
was made 'on: Lot 87, Concession 11, inthe Township of. St. Vincent, In the
same year, and on this clearing, the first house was built and the first| erop
(potatoes). raised. . During the next two years, considerable additions 'were
made to the 8t. Vincent settlement, and another was established in the Town-
shiy of Collingwood.,.  ‘‘By  the time of the breaking out of ihe: Rebellion in

1837 each of these-Townships had safficient population to send a number of vel-
unteers to the frent.”

¥n 1836 Euphrasia was surveyed and in the same year, the' 'Government
aequired from the Indidias by ' treaty the Western half of ' the County except
Keppsl and: Barawak. In 1887, the first line of the Garafvaxa Road was run
by Charles Rankin Esq., P.L.8.” The Rebellion put'an end to all farther de-
velopment till.about 1840, when  the work of surveying was begun 'and carried:
on till about' 1850 or 1851 when all the Townships except Keppel ‘and Sarawak
werenarveyed. | ‘Keprel was surrendered: by the Indians in 1855 when it was

1300 feet above the sea, and forming the watershed between the four lakes— #
Huron, Erie, Ontario and Simcoe—is interspersed with stretches of cedar and |
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immedidtely surveyed and put upon'the market: 'The Newash: Reserve front-
ing the Sound was ceded in 1857 and similarly dealt with by the ' government, |
The name was changed from Newash to Sarawak' by Lord Bury (Superin:
tendent of Indian, Affairs)inhonorof Major Brooke, the English ‘‘Rajah of
Sarawak.” ! The names, Kappel, Albemarle; Brooke, and indeed many: others
in the county may be accounted,for in the same way,

Early History,
DWW *

S EARLY as 1788, the Governor Generdl of Canada, issued'a proclama.
tign constituting the following judicial Districts in Upper Canada, viz.
Luneburg, ¥ g, Nassau and Hesse, comprising the settled territory
along;the 8t. Lawrence River and the Lakes - westward to: Lake ' 8t.. Clair.
The names.of these districts were changed in 1791 or '92 to Eastern, Midland,, :
Home and Western., In each district was appointed ajudge and a sheriff and
justice was administered in courts of common pleas. Any unorganized terri-
tory lying contiguous to a.county already formed was usually attached to such
county, and with it- formed part.of one or other of the districts referred to.
This was the case with the area now. gceupied by the present County!of :Grey:
A line running north and south alougthe western . boundary of St. Vincent,/
Eaphrasia, Artemesia and Rroton divides the county into twe-parts, the easts
ern half of which was for a ber: of years attached, to the. County of Simcoe
and the Home District of which York, (Torento) was;the judicial headgnarters.
The Townships of the Western half, were, when organized, attached to Wel-
lington County in the Distrietof Waterloo. Afterwards, Osprey, Proton and
probably Melancthon were separated from Simcoe and attached to Wellington
where they remained until the final organization of the territory as a Provis-
ional County in 1852, :
The first Provisiofal Council of Gréy was held at the Village of Sydenham
on'the 15th of April; 1862, ' The Seeond and last Provisional’ Council was Held"

Tachl

in‘the same place in 1863, Inthis year also the 'County Bulldlnguwewwm-v
pleted and the County enteréd ‘apon its ‘independént municipal - existence ' i
1864, having now' finully ‘separated'from. ‘the united' counties of Wellington, :




ey 1,
Waterloo and Grey, to which it was attached for some years. The first meet-
ing of council after the separation from Wellington was held at the Village of
Syden ham on January 23rd, 1854.

At this time the County cousisted of fifteen ‘Townships, viz., Artemesia,
Bentinck, Collingwood, Derby, Eg t, Euphrasia, Glenelg, Holland, Mel-
ancthon, Normanby, Osprey, Proton, 8t. Vincent, Sullivan and Sydenham. ' In
1865, as before stated, Keppel, and in 1857 Sarawak were added. The County

luded these seventeen Townships until the formation of Dufferin County, by
proclamation of the Lieut t Governor of Ontario, on the 24th of January
1881, when Melancthon was detached and became part of the new County.
From this time forward, the municipal history of Grey is ‘‘set in clearer light”
and need not here be further dealt with. The names of the different Wardens
with dates of office are here appended for reference : —

WARDENS OF GREY COUNTY. b

James Beachell, 1852-8 ; Richard Carney, 1854 ; W. K. Flesher, 1855-6-7 ;
George Jackson, 18568-59-60 ; W. K. Flesher, 1861--2: George Jackson, 1868 ;
John McDonald, 1864 ; W. K. Flesher, 1865; Thomas Gamey, 1866 ; W. K.
Flesher, 1867 ; 8. J. Lane, 1868-9 and *70 ; James Edge, 1871; 8. J.  Lane,
1872 ; H. Reid, 1878 ; James Patterson, 1874 ; George Jackson, 1875 ; Joseph
Rorke, 1876 ; Robert McGhee, 1877 ; James Murdoch, 1878 ; C. E. Barnhart,
1879 ; Finlay McRae, 1880; W. 8. Christos, 1881 ; C. R. Sing, 1882; D. Mc-
Nichol, 1888 ; 'John Cameron; '1884 ; John Chisholm, 1885 ; Victor 'Lang,
1886 ; N. Reid, 1887: John Clark, 1888 ;' R. McNaught, 1889 ; Charles Mof-

fat, 1800 ;' Thomas Gilray, 1891 ; ' James Cochrane, 1892 ;* Samuel Rog'ers, )

1893 ; Charles Lemon, 1894 ; George Binnie 1895,

Gravél Roads.

HE GARAFRAXA ROAD.:~In 1840-41, John McDonald Bsq., of Goderich,
- the Canada Company’s Surveyor, was employed to lay out a tier of lots on
each side of the Garafraxa. Road.  The line finally adopted by him diverged
in certain points from that run by Mr. Rankin in 1887 (see p.2) The new line
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B the one now used. It extends from Guelph to Owen Sound through Fergus,
rthur, Mount Forest, Durham and Chatsworth. It was so called from the
ownship of Garafraxa, from which it started at a point near Fergus, and

vhich was then the most Northerly Township settled along the route. It is

:, ill known 'as the Owen Sound road in Wellington County. Before the end of

{811, a considerable portion of the Road was settled, the lots being disposed of
y the government on the ‘‘Free Grant” principle of 50 acres free to each
ettler.

2. THE DURHAM ROAD.—In 1848, the Durham Road was laid out. It
@stretched across the southern part of the Townships of Osprey, Artemesia,
[Flénelg and Bentinck, from Nottawasaga westwards, and was intended to
{@onnect Lake Simcoe at Barrie with Lake Huron at Kincardine. The portion
8f itin the County from Durham eastward was surveyed by David Gibson
. sq., and that west of Durham by Mr. Brough. Just east of A Priceville, the
oad, instead of going on its old course turns to the N. E. towards Flesherton
thence through Maxwell to Singhampton on the county line. From Singhamp-
ton the road takes a northerly course towards Duntroon and Collingwood Town
in Simcoe County. 'Along the Durham road in Grey County the lots were
‘‘Free Grants” of 50 acres to actual settlers, and from 1849 may be said to
“@have been fully settled.

8... THE TORONTO AND SYDENHAM ROAD, (Now usually, the Toronto
Line) was surveyed in 1848. It extends diagonally across the County from
the Garafraxa - Road at Chatsworth in a direct line through = Holland Centre,
Berkeley, Markdale, Flesherton, and (near) Dundalk, to Brampton  thence to
9 Cooksville where it strikes tife Dundas Road into T\ It was int
¥ to give as direct communication as possible between Sydenham (Owen Sound)
¥ and Toronto, hence its aame. In 1849 three Ranges of lots were laid out on -
each side and 50 acres given free tosettlors.

. Aad

‘4, THBE NORTHERN ROAD or the Owen Sound and Collingwood ' ‘Road,
beqause at anearly'date the only road between these twotowns. ~Before it was
gravelled however in 1860, it was a poor road exeept in winter and *‘scarcely
practicable for loaded teams.” ' The portion’ through Sydenham is yet only in
Al fair condition and on account of the scarcity of good gravel, and the rocky

§ nature of :theroadbed it is difficult to keep in good repair, At Owen Sound, it
meets the Owen Sound and Saugeen Road which extends direct wast throngh




U,

Dorby, to Southampton on Lake Huron, a distance of 22 miles.
The portions of these four leading roads, within the County—over 160
miles in length—were gravelled in 1859-60 at & cost of about $300,000. Al-
hough this was burd to the early settlers, it is the special glory of the
County of Grey that there is not a single toll-gate within its limits. InDecem- 3§
bér 1879 these roads were turned over by the County to the Township Muni- {§
cipalities to be kept by them in perpetual repair. ‘

Educational.,

>

DUCATIONALLY, the County of Grey is not behind the older counties ex-
cept perhaps in the numter of High Schools. There are now (1895) how-
ever, two,—a High School iu Meaford, with four Teachers, and a Collegiate In-
stitute in Owen Sound wiih nine Teachers, Both these institutions hold a fore-
most place in the Province among similar institutions, not only in the number

of students in attend and at inations but aiso in the general
character of the work done in all the depar of Secondary Educati

There is, however, room for another High School here in the 8
part of the County.

The Northern Business (-llege which has its home in Owen Sound, has
under the able management of C. A, Fleming Esq., the Principal

5 4

and proprietor, become one of the foremost cf its kind in the Province.

There are three Inspectoral Divisions—West, East and South' Grey.
West ' Grey comprises the Townships of Keppel, Sarawak, Derby, Sullivan,
Sydenham and Holland, and the Town of Owen Sound. East Grey comprises
8t. Vincent, Euphrasia, Collingwood, and the Town of Thornbury, South
Grey, the seven southern Townships and the Towns of Durham and Mea-
ford, The P, 8. Inspectors are Mr. Thomas Gordon, Owen Sound, for W.
Grey ; Mr. A, Grier, Thornbury, for E, Grey and Mr, N. W, Campbell, Dur-
ham, for 8. Grey.

There are at present in the County,including the towns, nearly 300 P. 8.
teachers and about 10 Separate S8chool teachers employed.
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AUGEBN.—The Saugeen River the Garaf; Road in five forks or
branches, the sources of which are some distanceapart. (1) The south
branch (wrongly known as the Maitland) rises in the south east of Proton and
flows through Cedarville, Mount Forest, Ayton and passing near Neustadt joins

§ the Main branch a short distance west of Hanover. (2) The Beatty Saugeen

rises by various branches in eastern Egremont and Western Proton and flows
tnrough Holstein and (near) Orchardville westward through Normanby till it

Wl meets the 8, fork, south of Hanover. (3) The Main branch rises in the South of
8 Osprey, and flows

d through Ar ia, Proton, Glenel~ Bentinck,
passing in its course Wareham, Priceville, Durham and Hanover in the county,

4 then through Bruce Couaty to Southampton on Lake Huron. (4) The Rocky

Saugeen tius in Artemesia, near Flesherton Station and flows northward into
Euphrasia then southward, past Markdale, through Glenelg and into Bentinck
where it joins the Main branch about 5 miles N. W. of Durham. = (5) The North
branch (often called the Suble)rises in eastern Holland and flows westward

3 through Williamsford th south ly through Sullivan to Scone. It

then takes a nortk westerly direction till it falls into the Main Saugeen, a
little below Paisley. All the branches of the Sargsen are among the best
trout streams in the Province. Hayward's Falls, a favorite picnic resort, are
on the Rocky Saugeen branch, about 8 miles from Durham. ' Normanby, Eg-
t, Glenelg and Bentinck are wholly drained by the Baugeen River and
Proton, Melancthon, Osprey, Artemesia, Eaphrasia, Holland and Sullivan are
partially drained by it. ~ The total length of the main branch is considerably
over 100 miles. ;
BBAVER. —This is the largest river wholly in the County. It rises in the
north east of Osprey by several branches which join and within a few miles
form a considerable mill stream. It then passes Feversham and flows B, W,
to Eugenia in Artemesia,  where after the descent of the Falls and the rapids
below it tarns to the N. E. through Eaphrasis and Collingwood to Georgi
Bay at Thornbury. Before hing Eugenia it receives a large fesder from
the South, and at the foot of the rapids, the Boyne river which rises a short




distance 8. of Flesherton Station. The Eugenia Falls are 70 feet high and
are the most romantic natural wonder in the county. Below the Falls, are the
rapids which have a descent of several hundred feet within a mile or two.
The rugged scenery of the gorge below the Falls 1s perhaps unrivalled in
Waestern Ontario. meberley, Heathcote and Clarksburg are the only villages,
on its lower course,

Big HEAD. —( 8o called from a remarkably large skull found at its mouth
by the first surveying party,or from an Indian Chief bearing that name) Rises
in two forks: the Eastern, two miles 8. of Walter’s Falls, near the townline be-
tween Holland and Euphrasia ; the Southern or Western, not far from the
centre of Holland. The Eastern source is a fine spring which with several
fealers, forms at Walter’s Falls a sufficiently large stream to furnish power for
several mills, . On each of the forks of the Big Head is a Falls 20 or 30 feet
in height, that on the western fork being known as Philip’s Falls and that on
the eastern taking the same name as the village. Around these the scenery is
picturesque and beautiful. The two forks unite in 8ydenham then flow N. E.
to Georgian Bay at Meaford, a distance of about 20 miles, \

SYDENHAM.—Rises in a small lake (Williams’) in Holland 2 miles east of the
Garafraxa Road and, 14 miles from Owen Sound where it empties into the bay af-
ter a course of nearly 20 miles. It crosses the Garafraxa Road about two miles
north of Williamsford, Three miles 8. of Owen Sound in ,Derby Township are
Inglis’ Falls, of :which the. ‘‘people of the town and neighborhood are justly
proud.” The Falls are about 70 feet high but thed tis broken and irregul
In high water, the effect is striking;and beautiful, Just above the Falls are
situated Inglis’ Mills—saw, woollen and flour., Several other saw mills arp
driven by the Sydenham in its course.

_SKBLE—(i)roperly, Aux' S8able of the North). Rises a Httle south of 'the
centre of Svllivan, and flows with a westerly course into Bruce Coanty, then
northerly passing ' Invérmay and Tara to: Lake Huaron south of Chief's Point
and ‘the Fishing 'Islands. ¢ ‘The Sable drains ‘' Shallow Lake and several other
laKes in' Keppel." i ‘ 3 T

'INDIAN. “A'small sluggish stream, ‘which,  tising in Bass' Lake in Keppel
flows in & south easterly' direction through' Sarawak, into' Owen  Sound Bay
dbiont 3'miles from the Town. ‘It is chiefly noticeable oni account of ‘its Fa,lla,
40 foot: Ligh, onehalf mile from its mouith.




gl
POTTAWATAMIE (Has several spellings. }~—A small stream ' which rises in
8. W. of Derby, flows N. E. about 14 miles and falls into Owen Sound Bay

the Town, forming the north weatern boundary of the Town-plot. The
pttawatamie Falls, over which the water descends by two leaps 20 or 80 feet are

put 2 ' miles from Owen Sound and are during  high water, !‘very pretty.”
Blow the Falls, are situated Jones' saw mill, Wright's oatmeal mill and
ng &  Leslie's saw mill and Door and Sash Factory. . From these mills to
p bay the vallay is about half a mile wide with precipitous and . rocky  sides,
rming a sheltered place for gardens and orchards.

MAD.—A branch of the Nottawasaga River,which rises by several streams
Osprey and Melancthon. ' Passing Singhampton it descenda rapidly into
mcoe County and joins the Nottawasaga near Angus, |

PRETTY.—This is a small ' stream that rises at' Rob Roy in Nsprey and
N. E." past Nottawa village, thence northward t. e bay east of Col
gwood Town. " .
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The Railways.
>

S HE NORTHERN—Enters the County on the Shore of Georgian Bay, from
thie Town of Collingwood and passes ‘through ‘Craigleith'and Thornbury’ to)
feaford, its present terminus.” This road was cpened for traffic in the winter
\#bf 1854-5, ' as far ‘north as Barrie.' 'The extension to' Collingwood was made
uriig 1855 'and that to Meaford by ' the North Grey Extension Co., ini 1872,
he control of the Northern R.R. was taken over by the Grand Trunk R. Cov,

tle'south of the
ce County, then
of Chief’s: Point
d' several other

Lake ‘in Keppel
en’ ' Sound Ba.y
nt of ‘its’ Falls,

Win 1887,

THB OWBN 80UND BRANCH O.P.R.—formerly called the ¢ ‘Toronto Grey
and Bruce” was chartered in 1868, built about 1870; completed in'August1878;
widenied by the G.T.R. Co., aud ‘run by it for nearly two years [1882-3]and taken'
er by the O.P.R. Co., in 1838. The Road enters the County near the 8. E.

orner'at Dundalk; and follows the general direction|of the Torento line, through

Proton Sta.; Flesherton Sta., Markdale; Berkeley and Holland Centre to Chats- |
worth, then tarns north to Owen' Sound—a distance of about 40 miiles in the’
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THE DURHAM BRANOH G.T.R.—formerly ¢‘The Georgian Bay and Wel
lington R.R.” ' This line extends from Palm and Mouns Forest (both in
Wellington Co.) through ' Holstein and Varney (flag station) to Durham a dis- i
tance of 16 miles in the county. The Road was chartered in 1878 under the
direction of a local' company but in 1881, it was taken over by the G.T.R. Co., |
and openei, for traffic in 1882, )

Tun OWEN S8OUND BRANCH (. T.R.,—recently changed from *Wiarton |
Branch” G.T.R. 'The Road was known first as the Stratford and Huron R.R.,
and since 1881 as the Georgian Bay and Lake Erie division G.T.R. It was
chartered (or an old charter was revived)in 1872 or *78'and opened for traffic |
in 1882, ' Enters the county from Harriston, at Alsfeldt (flag station) and pro- |
ceeds north to Ayton, thence 'N.W, to Neustadt, Hanover and Elmwood. 1§ |

tes N, of Elmwood it crosses the county boundary line, into Bruce Cq, and
runs northward to Wiarton.  The Owen Sound extension, opened in 1884, joins
the uriginal main line at Park Head. }

Municipalities:
@O

PRESENT, there are 22 municipalities  in the County—4 Towns, 2 Vil-
lages, and 16 Townships, . Besides these  there are two Police Viliages—;
Chatsworth and Flesherton, but, as they are included in their respective Town-
ships for Municipal purposes, they will require no minute description apart from
these Townships. ’
THE TOWNS.

OWEN BOUND-—(pop. 8500, *acreage 5400). : The County Town. ., Incor-
porated -as &' Town ‘o ‘1st January 1857 when 'its name was changed  from
Sydenham: %0 Owen Sound. : The Town is *omantically situated on : both sides,:
of the Sydenham River where it enters Owen Sound Bay. It appearsias if .it
were originally part of the Townships of Derby and Sydenham bug in reality. it
never formed a part of either. Itis ‘& governmint. survey for.a town (ploc.
Ithowever  breaks into the regular formation of both, ¢

The Town-plot is bounded on the east by the 10th concession line of Syd-
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ham, on the north and north west by Owen Sound Bay and the Pottawatamie
ver, on the wast by the 8rd concession line of Derby and on the south by the
horthern limit of Lot No. 14 in the 11th and 12th concessions of Sydenham and
he 1st and 2nd concessions of Derby, )

Its eastern limit is 4§ miles long from norﬂr to soutk and its southern limit
about 8§ miles from east to west. It was laid out by Chas, Rankin Esq.,
.L.8., about 1835,

On account of the ridge of high land on each side of the bay the harbor is
probably one of the best sheltered on the upper lakes, For this and other
easons the town was made the connecting link between the C.P.R. Steamship
ine from Port Arthur and intermediate points, and the 0.8, Branch C.P.R.,
om Toronto. It has recently been made the terminus of what was heretofore
nown as the Wiarton Branch of the G.T.R. The Sydenham and P:

nie ' rivers furnish power for flour, oatmeal and woollen mills and for the
lectric Light plant, There are also saw, shingle and planing mills, two
oundries, a tannery, and.a furniture and bent chair factory, Ship building is
carried on . to a considerable, extent and there is a Dry Dock for ship repairs
B of all. kinds, Grain, flour, live stock and the products of the factovies are
hipped. A large C.P.R. Elevator aids the transshipment of grain from the
W toamships to the Railway, A general and Marine hospital has recently been
Abuilt,
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b The town is provided with an excellont system of waterworks and is lighted
olice .Vilhgel-—‘ § with gas and electricity. It has three newspapers with steam presses: The
respactive Town- @ 7me, established in 1858 ; The Advertiser, established: in 1862 and The Sww,
iption apart fram

Mestablished in 1890. Besides these, the Northern' Business College and John
M Rutherford’s Sons have Book and Job printing offices,

MEAFORD—(pop, 2000, acréage 1500). ' Maaford is situated on Georgian

Town. ., Incor- § Bay at the mouth of the Big Head River, nearly 20 miles east of Owen Soundi

changed. from Incorporated on 1st January' 1875, The river supplies power, and there are
d'on ; both sides,, flour; woolleri! and saw mills, ‘a foundry, two' ‘tanneries, a ribbon and‘earpet
lwe-nau if it factory. a wire mat factory, three planing and Door and S8ash Factories and two
b in realisy it ruit evaporators, It is the terminus of the N. & N, W. Division of:the G.T R,
& town plog. Fish, grain, frait, produce, leather and machipery are shipped. The hanbor

L 4
s excellent and is & port of call for all steamers running :from : Collingwood to i
the Upper Lakes, | There are two weekly. newspapers—The. Mjsror and The

n line of Syd-
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Monitor. :T.etown is  lighted with Electricity 'and a good system of Water-
works is' now in dourse of construction and within the year (1895) will be in
operation,

The name MEAFORD was given to the village by W. R. Gibbard Esq., P.
L.8., whenhe surveyed it in 1845, after the country seat ot Admiral Jervis,
Earl 8t. Vincent, in whose honor the Township of 8t. Vincentalso was named.

DURHAM—(pop. 1800, Acreage 1100) is situated on the main branch of
the Saungeen River (which ' supplies power) where it crosses the Garafraxa
Road. Incorporated as a town on st January '78. . It has two foundries; flour
saw, ‘'woollen and planing mills ; a tannery ; two door and sash factories, and
two weekly' newspapers, The Chronicle and The Grey Review. . The South
Grey . Registry  Office is sitnated here — Thomas Lauder Esq., Registrar,
Durham is the Northern termints of ' the Durham Branch G.TR., by which:
g ain, live stock, produce, square timber, poles, wood, ete., are shipped: iThe  @holsteri
town has!an electri¢ light plant: driven by water power. ilived witl

THORNBURY—(popi 1000, Acreage 960) is  situated on Georgum Bay ot [ Vilagel
the mouth of the Beaver River, which mpplies power. ' Incorporated as a town /
on the 2nd May 1887, It contains saw, shingle, flour, 'oatmeal and  woollen
mills, &'tannery, a' planing mill, a door and sash factory, and"two weukly

AR
nowspapers, The ‘Union Standard and The’ Hera/d. The Harbor is good ‘and’ R ankin
steamers call at intervals during the season. The N. and N.W. Branch G.T\ ¢ mre lon
R., has a station 'here and by it are shipped fruit, grain, live-stock and the sl

prodace of the mills. - The town  is lighted with electricity and is an excellent R
and healthful Summer Resort: X

is well n
r ' THE VILLAGES.' o Br s
MAREDALE—(pop. 900, Acreage 950) Is situated on'thé Toronto Line, [ ®n Boyn

between Glenelg and: Artamésia, 26 miles sonth east from Owen  f3ound, and & woollen :
not far from the  Rocky Saugeen branch of the Sangeen River. ' Incorporated paper, T
as a village on 1st January 1889. . It has 'woollen, floar and saw miills ; a foun- floar and
dry; a basket factory, and ‘a weekly newspaper, The Standard. It is a lead- the Falk
ing station on the O.8. Branch C.P.R., by which grain, wood, poles, pmdnco planing 1

ndlivomkmohippd. % been bui
 DUNDALE—(pop. ‘800, acreage 440) is ' situated ‘or the Mghupllntl'h ¢
Prom,-M one-halfimile’ from the Toronto Line, 40 ‘miles 8.E. of Owen: 38 ' Bm

Sound. ' Incorporated as s villige on 1st January' 1887.! It is the ‘highest
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tation on the 0.8, Branch, C.P.R., and ships large quantities of poles, wood,
ts, rough grains, live stock and other products of the farm and dairy. < It
ontains two saw mills, a woollen mill, a sash and door factory, two planing
ills, and a weekly newspaper, The Hera/d. It is probably the largest station
the County for the shipment of cheese, grain and stock, and ‘the largest
hipping station for cedar in the Province,

HANOVER [pop. 1900]is probably the largest unincorporated village in the
vovince. It was first called Adamst: hut was changed in 1856 to Hanover.
'he village contains some of the most inportant facturing blish
The Knechtel Furnitureand Cabinet factory and the Hanover Furniture and
ndertaking Co's Factory are among the largest and best equipped factories of
@ he kind in the Proviace. There are besides, flour, saw and ‘woollen mills, two
anneries, a foundry, a felt factory, a sash and doox factory, a mattress and up-
@holstering factory and other industries. A weekly newspaper, The Post equip-
{@ved with steam: presses, is one of the largest newspapers in the County. The
‘ village is lighted with electricity.

THE TOWNSHIPS,

ARTEMESIA-—(pop. 4092, acreage 67,722) was surveyed in 1849-50.by C.
ankin Esq. The surface in_ the north is somewhat uneven and hilly  but
more level towards the south. The soil is either gravelly or heavy . clay and is
usually pronounced good. Two branches of the Saugeen river, and the Beaver
river, pass through the Towiship, With these and their feeders the Township
i8 well watered, It contains the villages of Flesherton (pop. 800),. Priceville
{8 (pop. 350), Flesherton Station (pop. 150) and Eugenia (pop 200,) Flesherton

& on Boyne River (a tributary of the Beayer) which furnishes power;: has flour,
woollen and saw mills, a stave factory, a machine shop and a weekly news-
paper, The Advance, Priceville, on the Saugeen which furnishes power, has
floar aud saw mills, a tannery, etc. Eugenia is built.on the Beaver river near
the Falls. It has magnificent water power, which is used for saw, shingle and
planing mills, ‘and for ajlarge] Hoop and Veneer factory which has reuntly
been built,

$

* BENTINCE-~(pop. soes acreage 75,878) was .nmyea in 1850 by John



lnpphupower,hu flour, saw and  woollen mills, a basket factory, a foundry

—fg

'Stoughton Dennis, ‘Esq.  Bentinck is well watered by'tlre Sangeen River ang
its branches. N

spring ks cover the Township as a net work
The surface in'the west is ‘rolling or'level ; in'the east rather hilly. The Bsoil

is generally gravelly and stony in the east and ‘south but in the centre and
west it “is heavy clay or sandy loam with considerable tracts of stony soil and}
some patches of swamp, The g. ater partof the villagese Hanover [see p. 13}
and Elmwood, both on the Owen Sound Branch G.T.R., is in the Township o 3

Bentinck. Elmwood [pop. 300] has flour, planing and saw mills, and a broon
handle and cheese box factory.
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COLLINGWOOD,—(pop. 8852, acreage 66,844) was surveyed in 1833 byj shipped
Charles Rankin Fsq. The Township of Collingwood is'traversed by the Bluoi#l, potte
Mountains which stretch through the centre of the Township from the southern'
upland of Osprey, northward to near Georgian Bay, east of Thornbury.” The
surface is thus divided into twoslopes, eastern and western, the former wamred
'by the Beaver and Indian Rivers with: their branches, and the latter by ama.ll

Et
Ranki)

¥ line, c
streams flowing into the Nottawasaga River and Bay. The soil is mostly § north ¢
heavy clay, both ou the ‘“‘mountains” and in the valleys. The south east is § ,with al
very rough and stony, and several stony stretches follow the bay along the @ threen
north, The lower part of the Beaver Valley is sometimes known as Queen’s § thus.ru

Valloy and is noted for its mild and salubrious climate. The following excerpt i others

/from 'a papér by ‘Mr. C. W, Hartman, of Clarksburg, on ¢‘Fruii Growing in

westwa
“the Beaver Valley” will be of more than passing interest. !‘The valley extends (@ curve t
from Thornbury'to Evgenia Falls, and is productive of excellent fruits. Over §§ Beaver
160,000 'barrels ‘of apples are gathered in the Valley a&ery year. President $§ N.W. 2
"Grant of Queen’s Collége, Kingston, speaks of this place as being a very excel- central
“leti’fesich growing district. The' climate is all that can 'be desired and the (i i8 Tollin
soil is'well 'watered by healthy ‘streams. An eloctric railway is spoken of to (@ Valley.
*eonneet Thorabry ‘with Mount ‘Forest, and so form a short highway to Buffalo @ by the
for the traffic'in fruits. A carload of ‘plums is shipped daily from the Valley @8 [See w
‘during the'season, 'This place is .10ted as a fruit grower’s paradise.” [pop- 1!

villages
.l_,luidqn fruit, grain -and live stock are largely . produced. . /Clarksburg

4 ship ar
(pop. 800), Heathcote (pop. 100). Ravenna (pop. 100) and Craigleith are: the

villages. Clarksburg one mile south of Thornbury on the Beaver River, which 8 :‘G
\. by'. \
“and & weekly newspayer, The Refector.

“ern par
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DBERBY  (pop. 2200, acreage 40,665) was surveyed in 1846 by C. Rankin
sq. The Township was named at the time of survey after (the then) Lord
Derby. The surface is generally level, though some parts are somewhat hilly.
here are large tracts of pretty level, and very good land—clay and. friable
oam—in the centre and west of the Township. 1In the east, the goil is stony
nd the aspect rougher especially along the courses of the Sydenham and Pot-
awatamie Rivers. Along the upper course of the Pottawatamie River, there is
onsiderable swamp land which furnishes cedar and other soft timbers. The
'ownship is favorably situated for fruit and is one of the best agricultural dis-

§ tricts in the county, hence, large quantities of fruit, grain and live stock are
AT iy M shipped. Kilsyth (pop. 100,) the only village of importance, has a saw mill and
. (] ]
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EUPHRASIA [pop. 3567, acreage 72,000] was surveyed in 1836 by Mr,
Rankin. The Beaver River enters Euphrasia about the middle of its south
line, crosses the Township ina northeasterly direction and passes out near the
north east corner forming a broad valley [called the Cuckoo or Queen’s Valley, ]
with about a mile of slope on each side at the south, and widening 'to two or
three miles as the river proceeds northward. The ridges on  each side, which
thus run almost parallel to the river are in places rocky and precipitous but in
others the slope is gradual. At the north, the Western ridge turns in a carve
westward towards Walters’ Falls. The Rocky Saugeen passes in an irregula:
curve through the south western corner. The surface and soil west of the
Beaver presents three distinct divisions : ‘The northern part is hilly [in the
N.W. a series of rocky bluffs extend] with good productive clay soil. The
central part is largely occupied with rough swamp land. The southern part
is rolling land with soil gravelly loam. ‘The cultivable parts in the Beaver
anley are good clay soil. The Cuckoo Valley, being' sheltered from exposure
by the ridges on each side is favorably si d for the pr ion of fruit.
_[See under Collingwood). Rocklyn [pop. 100] with a saw mill and Kimberley
. [Fop. 125] with one flour, two saw and two shingle mills are the only important
villages. Epping, Goring and Heathcote [in part] with saw mill in this Town-
ship are the other villages.

ced. ‘.ch.l"hbm'g

raigleith are: the
aver River, which ; VEGREMONT—(pop. 8904, acreage 72,322, ) was surveyed from 1846 to 1850
sctory, & foundry &% by Mr. Kerr.  The surface of Egremont, ' along the north western and mnorth-

“ern parts is hilly. | The:central part is generally level, sometimes flat and the
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southérn and eastern parts, rolling. The Township is well watered by the two
southern branches of the Saugeen’ river, which are fed by many spring
creeks making excellent grazing and farming land.  ¢THhe soil is variable, at
times sandy, occasionally gravelly, often a friable loam and sometimes though
not often heavy clay.” Holstein (pop 800,) a station on the G.T.R., the most
important village, is on'the Beatty Saugeen which furnishes power for
flour and saw mills. Dromore (pop. 126,) with saw, shingle, feed and
planing mills, a Broom handle factory, and an excellent Hall for public meet-
ings, Yeovil and Orchardville (pop. 160) with flour and saw mills are the other
villages. The products are generally those of the farm and mills,

i

GLBENBLG—(pop. 3818, acreage 68,300,) was surveyed by Mr. Deunis in
1850. ‘The surface of Glenelg presents a somewhat rough appearance. The
whole Tuwnship is hilly—the south east being rather rolling than hilly—with
considerable wooded tracts in the northern parts. In the centre and south
west, the soil is gravelly clay or clay loam in a good state of cultivation. :
Much of the soil is stony but on account of the numberous spring streams which
flow through almost every hollow and valley, it makes excellent grazing land.

The products are mainly timber, grain ‘and stock. Traverston on the Rocky
Saugeen, which furnishes power for flour and saw mills is the only village
within the township. On its western side however ‘are Durham and Dornoch,
and on the eastern, Markdale and Priceville, all on the boundry line, All
parts of the Township are thhs''within easy reach of town or village.
HOLLAND—(pop. 3602, acreage 90,300) was surveyed in 1849 and '50 by
MY, Rankin. The Township of Holland is somewhat hilly with a generally
rough, uneven and sometimes rocky surface. Some stretches of cedar swamp
are found dlong the streams. 'In the central and southern parts the soil is
stony and gravelly but in the north belt, some 3 or 4 miles in width, it is clay
. or loam and is usnally productive and fertile. ' *The Township is well watered
by many springs, some small Iakes, and [ mill streams, that, running in
different directions, form the head waters or become tributary to the Big
Head, Sydenham or Saugeen Rivers.”  Berkeley (pop: 160) and Holland
Centre [pop. 200] on the Toronto Line and Chatsworth [pop. 600] on both sides
of the Garafraxa Road where it is joined by the Toronto Line are important

B el T S S
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stations on the C.P.R., fiom which hrge quangities of pol- wood,; ‘lumber and
the usual agricultural products are d.~ Ch th has a foundry, ‘two

tanneries, saw and 1-hning mills and a weokly newspaper, The News. Walter's
Fulls [pop: 800 .on.the east branch of the  Big Head River which supplies ' ex-
cellent water power for flour, saw and ‘woollen mills is ‘aléo & prosperous: village:
The falls, are about, 30 feet high. . Massie and Strathaven, each with saw and
flour mills are the other villages, i bia i i ;

KePPEL—[pop. 3174, acreage 87,635] was surveyed in 1855 hy' Mr. Ran-
kin, Several rocky ridges of consulera.ble helgllt extend through the eastern
and northern parts of Keppel. These are in two main well-defined ranges or
linés :—one, begmning at the south end near 'Owen Souml nnd extomling
northivard along the west side of the Indian River until near its source, where
the range breaks, crosses the river in a north easterly dlrection, then turns in
a semicircular curve to the 8. W, back to the east side of the nver : the sec-
ond, beginning in Sarawsk and extending northward along the ahore to Cape
C dore, tl d with ional breaks as far as Ox d 'The
surface of the western part of the townshlp is uony and ln phm lwampy
wnthgood rolling land towards the N.W. Inthe N, qnd lL, tlla land on tho
ridges is a series of ublo—lmdn while below tbe ndgu it is rolling and ;loping,
The soil in the N, and E. is a heavy clay and in the W. a undy Io.m.
Keprel has a number of small lakes many of which are duined by the Sah\l
River [which seo]. The most important of these is Slnlhw Lake near tbq
South 6f the Township, Shallow Lake, is 9 miles from Owen Sound by the
rond 3 from Hepworth and 23 from Park Head. It is 600 acres inextont lnd
has been recently drained ata cost of about $9000, BD that it is nawdry oxcepg
during the spring and mtumn fmhets The clay wlnch fornu the bed of
the lake is intwo lnyers, the upper shallow and lighhr in color bolng llrgdy
composed of carbonat of lime, the lower, a deeper and darker clay. By a
proper ‘mixture of thése'two clays Portland ' Cement ‘of the véry best ‘quality is
frroduced. ' Putty 'for window glass, fire "proof paints, brick, tiles and ‘ofhier
such articlés are aldo manufactured from ‘this line depdsit.’ The ixke is owned
by R: J. Doyle Esq,, Owen Bound, through whose energy and persevérance; ‘&
¢ompany—the ‘Owen Sotnd Portland ' Cemént Company-_was' formed ‘to de-
velop this ‘growing and profitable industry. A considerable vﬂhgo—shllow
Liake [jop: ‘200] with ‘two saw mills has’ grown dp  ‘around ‘the' Ceiment’ works,
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{Phe -other. ivillages, ate, Hepwarth [pop 500} lon Sable’ Rivér with saw snd
shingle mills; and & weekly newspaper, The ;/ournal; Oxenden on: the Stour
Riveror Gleason Crepk with: flout 'and saw  mills ; ; North Keppel on Colpoy’s
Bey, s poet of: eall fori the Gebrgian  Bay steamers and. Kemble [pop lao].
th‘i'hg village, 12 miles front Owen Sound:

. NORMANBY-{pop. 5000, acreage 08 199]) was surveyed in 1841,1‘45 and
'51 by John McDonald Esq, and David Gibeon Esq,'* The south branch’of
the in vaer Ffosses the Tomuh:p dugomlly from Mount Forest to Han-
over, and ﬂ'vidu it i‘nto uneqnal yqrh the N.E. bemg much the larger, This
hn.noh 18 joi § of }I'*nove; by theLm.laor B‘eatneSnugeenwhnch crosses
tha Tow h ] fro C h ,'villa, wards. 'These rivers provule
gxgq‘ll:ant. (llrmuge. ’l‘he aurfwe of the north and eaat is rnhqr rough and
upeven with mmy u,ndy or gravelly hills m'arlpeusd occnwmlly with
:'\um' ﬂm wmq mlles in extent.  The cantra.l jud south western parts are
|evel or undnhﬁng l‘nq, “lymg hnndsomel{ » The yrevuhng soil i in the level
pqrtn u clpy, in excelleut suﬁe of culhvnion and very prodm:tlve "The soil in
genernlly [ravel or gnveﬁy chy thh ocoumnul sand-
ry (rglt ex}ent. Two v;llgm w (pop 500) md Neustadt
1 y wnthm the Tovmnlnp. .nd pre, mpom on_the G.B. and
f euatldt, on llem&x ereek w]nch nqpplm pover, has
ﬁnr ﬂax, uw and woollen lmllu, Lfonndry, ,ta,nnery lnd brewery Grain,
fmh, live mk and' the prodneu of the ‘mills. ne shipped. Ayton on the 8,
&un h, Blngoen Rwet wluch aurpllu Wer, hu saw, shmgb nud planmg
utwe lcioq and a weekly msw'paper, The Anb«um The ﬂom' mill
inch wu burned | some years ago i l! in caurm of rebmlding und whan emn-
otex wﬂlbomofthe best of its, ‘kind in the Province, Large qmmiep
o?édry \ ",er ucts ¢ I,,",;_‘mnaidxhonmthe Mfm

waseh big wugoah o awal ady el 1 «

Qm!!—r(m Aha. WW.W _wag suzveyed in 184-9 and’w lv Qs
mm {This Townahip jo.a high wpland with the surface lovel except,in
the north east theough which, spurs; from: the, ! ‘Blus, Mountaina’ extend, mak-
ipgit xongh.and: hillg.. In shejsouth is, g large +‘Hugkleberry, Mamsh! in op
negr which, iathe.spurce of the main, brangch. of the  Bangesn. River,; ‘(Springs
ahownd;in the Rownship  some of them maguificent, fountain, beads ; making
Pocli that nexes fraeas, anY, Fard actos with, hagd bottoms of marly lime;
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| 1stons, :and forming: mill stresms st ekice.” * Neat the south' bast Corier i ‘1o Be
» Btour found the highest land!inthe Western Peninsula of Ontarie] actully #hetstréd,
Jolpoy's { .Bemb surveyots hive inade it 1248 feet above Georgidn 'Bay.'  THé woll i #iéh

100)a " «clny loam ion a| gravelly subsolli - The thres or 'four' cowesssiohs ‘tb the Horth

: ] are in parts very stony with some swamp land alotig the streams. ' Thevillages

a6 ‘and ‘ are Maxwell. Feversham, Badjervs; \Vareham; MeIntyre, Rob Roy aid Stng-
sich’ 6F hampton (is pars): - Maxwell :(pop. 160) ‘wear thé Beavér River has' a’woollén
e mill. Feversham (pop. 180) on the' Besver River'(which ‘farnishes power) i

" This flour, saw . and | mills,; Wareham has saw and shingle, apills, ..Sing-
crosecs hampion. (pop,, 300), on, the County, Line is situsted en the Mad Riyer, which
‘vai do supplies ,power, It hag flour, saw, woollen and ghingle mills. , y
gh, and . PROTON—(p .| 8297; acreage 81,182) was surveyed in, 1850 oy David
ly with Gibson Esq; . The ranges along the Toronto Liné were: laid ot ini '1848. .. The
arts are surface of Broton is alwmost an unbroken lovel largel dwith s land

L ' 4

he lavel B The land bet the pe is' gensrally. Hent with clay soil and hard-
e soil in 1 wood timber.... The, ‘Hog's, Batk,”! a nazrow. snske-like :ridge | or ‘bitk-bons,
\l sand- i sometimes rising from 20 to 50 feet above. the contignous level, runs irregularly
{eustadt from the north, to the sonth of the; Township, two to four miles from the west-

.B. and ern houndary. . This furnishes sbundarice of good gravel for the roads : within
ver, has reach, , Proton requires/large  expenditures for drainage; bt whén ouce prop-
 Grain, ; erly drained; it promises 4 beone of ithe bést Townships in the Provines < The
1the 8, i roads have of late yeers vastly improved and ave already among the best! in the
planing : County except in Spring and: Fall. | Wheat is:not much /grown:but  the yield of

our m,n other grains is abund Large supplies of telegraph poles and such light 4im-
en com- - bers are still producedannually. The 8, branch of ﬂpsaugun drains the south
untltiq west tho main bunch’d}e ;mrth, and the G;qnq River | whiqh passes through
\al fm ; the emar of the Township, }ho unth eut, The only villages are Codaryille
il (pop. 150), un the south hranch oftheSnugun yiy.luqm fopd and shingle mills,
50 by, G- "“ thfeedmdlhm*mlﬂl,,mghpcmw,ofthe
weopt in i i the w TRva4M ol
ety : ¥ ,‘swn.-(m 101 \acreage: w,na) was nrn_nd ini 1867 by e

A" in op lhnkhh (Barawak (fermerly the:Newash Resérve), one of the smallest

“Springs ‘ Tawnships in. the: Provinos, if favorally ditaated-on thie westerm shore of Owen
ki - Boond Bay.., Theiridge of high land runninig frosi the euthi of Keppel extends
ey limer iinto Saxawak and continued, with seme bireaks, northwards at a short distance

’
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from the shore. . The soil is fairly good, though in. some places rather stony for
easy cultivation. . Indian River risee in Bass Lake, Keppel, and flows 8.E,
,diagonally through the Township, to O 8. Bay, about:4 miles from the Town.
Sarawak has two villages—Brooke and Presqu’ Isle. Brooke (pop. 750) at the
south end, 1} miles from O.8.; contains saw, planing and flour mills, Presqu’
Isle (pop. 100) at the extreme north is.a beautiful sammer. resott and a port of
call for steamers trading in Georgian Bay. .The/ Pottawatamie River forms
the & dary line b Barawak and: Owen Sound. )

ST VINCBNT<(pop. 3494, 'aéreage’68,388) was surveyed’ in 1833 I;y
(Charles Rankin Esq. | The surface is generally rolling with sometimes long
and steep grades. ' A‘range of hills' ritaning E. and W. ' across’ the Township,
southi of Meaford; a second ranye, runiing. N and’8. along the ‘boandary be-
twoen 8¢; Vincent and Sydenhani ; and & third short range (Hog's Back)'in the
éxtreme morth running E. and W.!along Georgian Bay are the principal nplands
in thie Township, Near Capé Rich:is. Mountain Lake, a favorite summer re-
sort. . The enly river of importance is the Big' Héad which' passes through the
Townshipiina N, E; direction to Georgian: Bay at Meaford. ' In the south'end
the soil is clay loam and very prodpetive ; |in'the north heavy clay  with some
loam;: not so:productive j:in the central parts lighter clay with occasional sand
lgvels:abounds./: Along the shore there are considerable stretches of stony land.
Thie villages ave Bayview, Griersville and | Centreville but they are sinall and
of little imiportance. . The climate, owing to proximity to the Buy, " is'moderate
and therefore favorable for the gmwth of fruh, of which: largn qmmue- are
exported. .- ;;..:.m ! f
iy StrLLl‘VAN—(m u’!ﬂ lcrelge 18 ‘100) was' suryeyed in 1844, Clurlu
lhnl‘tln Esq., lnylng‘ ot Hié torthiern part, aud J. '8, bennu Esq., the southern
'pm. ““The north' Western half of Stlivan s’ nndﬂhﬁﬁg rather than Mlly the
soil, a’gdod clay sufficiently fhiable “for edsy cultivation and Aveugo pmluc-
‘tion.' THE Bouth ekt WKl s Foughés and more hilly, broken by cedar svum;-
and several small lakes ; the soil is gravelly and not so well cultivated exeept
ina m-.-.acmmch.'umﬂi where:some of this: best farms in’Sullivin are
tobe found: The Townshipiis well watered by three rivers's the -Sable'in the
west; the Sydenham in the enst snd the N. brasich of the Saugéentin the sourth,
‘The:villages dre Desboro’, Mooresburg, Keady; Peabody; Chatsworth' (i’ part)
.and Williaxisford (i part]. | Desboro!' {pop: 150) has-flour: saw,  plaring’dnd

*
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shingle mills,  \ ‘lliawsford [pop. 800) on the Garafraxa Road, has flour, saw
and woollen mills, Mooresburg [pop. 100] has saw and shingle mills.

SYDENHAM—{pop. 3903, acreage 73,268] was surveyed by Chas. Rankin
Easq., in 1842 and '43. The surface of Sydenh p iderable in-
equality. “‘A highupland separates Sydenham and 8t, Vi t; and the Town-
ship is traversed in its central part by a couple of rocky ridges [and a streak
of rocky land belonging to each] running N. E. and 8. W.” Betwoen these
ridges, the surface is undulating and in places hilly. The soil along the Bay
Shore, along the Lake Shore Road and in the Irish Block is clay loam and
well adapted for agricultural purposes. South of the gravel road the most pro-
ductive parts are about Bognor and Hoath Head. The other parts of the Township
are rocky or stony and are hence less productive, The southern part is drain-
ed by the Big Head River and its branches and the northern by several small
streams flowing into Georgian Bay, The chief villages are Woodford (pop.
100) with saw and flour mills ; Bognor (pop. 200) with flour, saw and' shingle
mills ; Annan (pop. 100) with flour mill ; Leith with shingle, saw and flour mills
and Hoath Head with a saw mill. There are several other smaller villages.
Agricultural products, chiefly hay, stock and grain are the principal articles
of export.

These sixteen Townships, four Towns and two Villages comprising the
County of Grey aggregate altogether uver 1,000,000 acres of land, thus form-
ing one of the largest organized counties in the Province,

The County is at p p d by six: Members of Parli
three in the Provincial Legislature and three in the Federal or Dominion
Parliament. ¢

The Electoral divisions for the two Houses are as follows :—

FEDERAL—North  Grey, prising the T hips of Derby, Holland,
Keppel, Sarawak, Sullim and Sydenham and the Town of Owen Sound;
East Grey, comprising the Townships of Collingwood, Euphrasia, Melancthon
(in Dufferin Co.), Osprey, Proton and 8t. Vincent, the Towns of Meaford and
Thornbury and the, villages of Dundalk.and Shelburne (out of Melancthon);
South Grey, comprising the Townships of Artemesia, Bentinck, Egremont
Glenelg and Normanby, the Town of Durliam and the Village of Markdale.

The census of 1891 gives the total population of these as follows :—North
Grey, 23,678 ; East Grey, 26,844 | South'Groy, 16;901.

263« 53~ 23672
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PROVINOIAL—North Grey, comprising the Townships of Keppel, 8 k,
Derby, Sydenham, 8t, Vincent, and the Towns of Owen Sound and Meaford ;
Centre, Grey, comprising the Townships of Collingwood, Osprey, Artemesia,
Euphrasia, Holland and Sullivan, tho Town of Thornbury and the Village of
Markdale ; South Grey comprising the Townships of Proton, Egremont, Nor-
manby, Glenelg and Bentinck, the Town of Durham and the Village of
Dundalk.

Local Courts,
% 2 2
Besides the County ‘Court, Surrogate Court and Court of General Ses-
sions, the meetings of which 'are held in the County town, meétings of the
Division' Court are heid mhu fonnwing ]hcu in'the Oomy =

Where Oonrt lulll. Name and P. O. Addrees of Olark.

OWEN,8OUND Benjamin Allen, Owen Sound.
DugaAM 0 'David Jackson, Durham,
MEAFORD " " Thomas/Plunkett, Meaford,

. THORNBURY . Thomas J, Rorke, Heathoote. _
Pimommvon § 7 Abram8, Vandusen, Flesherion.
ofaTéworte | JohnMcDousld, Chatsworth.

HANOVER = . ,Dunmctn\pboﬂ, Hapover,
MARKDALE ;..  Riherd L. Sloghen, uum
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WARDEN,
€0: TREABURER,
Co. CLERK,’

‘Co. Avpxrf)ns;
SENIOR CO. JUDGE,
JUNIOR Co, JUuDGE,

KEEPER OF THE GAOL,
SHERTFF,

* €0, COURT CLERK, ’

Co. CROWN ATTORNEY,

CLERK OF THE PBAQB,
. REGISTRAR N.;GREY, .

REGISTRAR 8.'GRBY,

County Officials,

B S 2

The following is a list of the officials of the County for 18956, Of these all
except the Warden and Cmmty Auditors may be called permanent officers, for
they are appointed during M behavior or ‘‘during pleasure.,” The Warden
and Co. Auditors are appointed Annually.

The Warden, Co. Treasurer, Co, Clerk, Co. Auditors and Public School
Inspectors (see page 6) are appointed by the County Council ; the Judges by
the Governor-Genaul of Canada acting under the advice of the Dominion
Government the _Governor or Keeper of the gacl by the Sheriff subject to
the npproval of the Lieutenant-Governor of Ontario, and the other officers
by the Lieutenant-Governor under the advice of the Pravincial Government.

George Binnie Esq:

8. J. Parker Esq.
John Rutherford Esq.

i Robert Edi"’lhq

John Creasor Esq.

D, Mortison Esq!

John Miller Esq,
Chatles H, Moore Esq.
George Inglis Esq.
A. G. McKay Esq.

. Wm. Armstrong Esq.
+ “Thomas. McKnight Esq;

Phomas Lauder Eaq,
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Mode of Appointment of Various other Officers.

Ve
Justices of the Peace, Police and Stipendiary Magistrates, Division
Court Clerks, Bailiffs and Provincial Constables are appointed by the Lieuten-

ant-Governor in Council.

One or more Coroners in and for every County, City and Town in the Prov-
ince of Ontario and for any provigional district or County, or for any portion of
the territory of Ontario, may be appointed by the Li Governor when-
ever he thinks fit. 5

Jurors for service at the several sessions of the Courts during the ensuing
year are selocted by two Committees or Boards as follows :—F'irst, a body of
men, known as ‘‘County Selectors,” and composed of the Judge or Judges, the
Mayor of a city if any in the county, the Warden, the Treasurer, the Sheriff
orin his absence the Deputy Sheriff shall meet annually on the 15th day of
September for the purpose of determining the number of Jurors both Grand
and Petit and for the High Court and Inferior Courts respectively, to be re-
turned for' each Municipality in such county.

Becondly, Another body of men composed of the Mayor or Reeve, the city,
town, village or township Clerk. and the A or A s shall bl
annually on the 10th day of October, toselect by ballot from the list of those
qualified as shown by the Voter's Lists, the number of Jurors both Grand and
Petit required for the respective courts by the County Selectors,

An alphabetical list of the names of those selected is then sent by the
Selectors in the 1| icipalities to the Clerk of the Peace for the
county. ) )

Constables are of four classes or kinds here distinguished according to
mode of appointment, ca i

1. County High Constables and Co. C: bles appointed by the Ji
of the Peace at any sitting or adjourned sitting of the Court of General Ses-
slons, such appointmentto continue at least for one year, and from year to year
unless the appointee claims ption in which case he shall be released atany
time after the end of the first year. ‘These Constables may 'also be ‘appointed
by County Judges sibject to notification'by thu Judge to the/Clerk of the Peace
and by the Clerk of the Peace t the Court of General Sessions.
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; 4. Temporary Constabl ppointed by a county or district Pollce Magi-
rs. ] strate, to hold office for not more than thirty days, and subject to immediate
notification to the Provincial Secretary—the appointment may be revoked by

Division the Magistrate or Provincial S8ecretary within the thirty days.
Lieuten- 8. Provincial Constables, inted by the Li Governor, either

b permanently or for such a period as he may think fit, such constables to have
he Prov- 1 authority to act in any part of the Province, The Li Governor may
yortion of also appoint Constables for any unorganized territory in the Province.

» when- L 4. BSpecial C bles appointed by any two or more Justices of the Peace,

| for any emergency that may arise, to hold office for such time as to the said
 ensuing Justices seems necessary for the preservation of the public peace or for the

body of P jon of the inhabi and the security of property in such territory or
Iges, the 3 place during such emergency.

o Sheriff All members of the House of Commons and of the Legislative Assembly
h day of 4 are elected directly by the people by ballot. Members of Municipal Coun-
h Grand cils, viz: Mayors and Aldermen 1n Cities ; Mayors, Reeves and Councillors in

to 'be re- Towns ; and Reeves and Councillors in Villages and Townships are elected an-
nually in the same way. Deputy Reeves are sometimes elected as such

the city, directly by the people and imes by the Councils of which they are mem-
assemble 1 bers. The other Manicipal officers are the Clerk, the Treasurer, the Auditors,
of those 1 the Assessor,and the Collector. These are appointed by the Councils,—Clerks
rand and L and Treasurers during the pleasure of the Council, Auditors, Assessors and

Collectors annually,
I by the
) for the

rding to

Justices
sral Ses-
ir to year
ed atany
\ppointed

he Peace



Table of Distances.
ses

The:following table showing the distance of each place named from Owen
Sound;: the-Connty Town, may be found useful. ~ Only approximate accuracy. is
claimed. for:it; Init it is believed that meet of the distances are correct to within
amild.  The:distance given is along the nearest open road, not ‘‘as the crow
flies,” nor that given' in:Railway Folders. For ease of reference the places
ate given alphabetically.

Place

Berkeley
Bognor

Presqu'lsle.... .. ..........
Ravenna

Foversham
Flesherton

Thornbury
Traverston

Woodford . ... ........ . ....
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Appendix.
¢ 4>

The Constitution of both Houses of Parliament, Federal and Provincial, is
set forth in the British North. America Act, 1867, a copy of which should be in
the hands of every teacher. . Sections, 91, 92 and 93,which specify. the powers
of the Federal Parliament and the Provincial Legislatures respactively ‘should
be carefully noted and at least some of the more important taughtin every
school. A few Sections are here given for the benefit of those who have not a
.copy of the Act. "

Sec. 9. The E tive Govi t and Authority of and over Canada is
hereby declared to continue and be vested in the Queen.

Sec. 15, The Command-in-Chief of the Land and Naval Militia, and of
all Naval and Milicary, Forces, of and in Canada, is hereby declared to con-
tinue and be vested in the Queen.

Sec. 17, There shall be One Parliament. for Canada, consisting of the
Queen, an Upper House styled the Senate, and the House of Commons.

The Governor-General is appointed by, and isthe representative of the Queen

The Senate shall consist of Seventy-two Members, and not more than
Seventy-eight (Sec. 28) who shall be styled Senators, and who shall, subject to
certain provisions, hold their places in the Senate for life (Sec. 29). Senators
are appointed by the Governor-General in the Queen’s name, by Instrument
under the Great Seal of Canada (Sec. 24).

Sec. 34., The Governor-General may from Time to Time, by Instrument
under the Great Seal of Cariada, appoint a Senator to be Speaker of the Senate,
and may him and i ther in his stead.

Sec. 37. The House of Commons shall, subject to the Provisions of this
Act, consist of One hundred and eighty-one Members, of whom Eighty-two

shall be elected for Ontario, Sixty-five for Quebec, Nineteen for Nova Scotia,
and Fifteen for New Brunswick.

Phe Governor-Gi 1 shall sui and call together the House of Com-
mons (Sec. 38). i .
The House of C , on its first assembling after a G 1 Election,

shall eleet one of its Members to'be Speaker, who shall preside at all its meet-
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ings (Sec. 44 and 46).

Sec. 50. Every House of Commons shall continue for Five Years from
the day of the Return of the Writs for choosing the House (subject to be sooner
dissolved by the Governor-General) and 1o longer.

There shall be a readjustment of the Members of the House, after the

pletion of each de ial Cénsus (the last in 1891), to take effect at the
termination of the then existing Parliamént. In making such readjustment,
the two following Rules (Sec. 51) mainly:govern:—

1. 'Quebec shall have the fixed Number of Sixty-five Members ;

2 There shall be assigned to each of the other Provinces such a number
of Members as will bear the same Proportion to the Number of its Population
(ascertained at such Census) as the Number Skty-ﬁve bears to the Number of
the Population of Quebec (so ascertained).

Sec. 58. 'For each Province there shall be an Officer, styled the Lieu-
tenant-Governor, appointed by the Governor-General in Council by Instrument
under the Great Seal of Canada, :

A Lieutenant-Governor holds office for five years except for cause
when he is removable by the Governor-General in Council (Sec. 59).

Sec. 60. The Salaries of the Lieutenant-Governors shall be fixed and pro-
vided by the Parliament of Canada.

Sec. 69. There shall be a Legislature for Ontario, consisting of the Lieu-
tenant-Governor and of One House, styled the Legislative Assembly of Ontario.

By Sections 27 and 70, the Legislative Assembly of Ontario was composed
of eighty-two members. By the last Revised Statutes of Ontario (1887) the
‘number of Electoral Districts was made eighty-eight, eighty-seven of which
returned one member each and the eighty-eighth, Toronto,returned three Mem-
bers, making in all atp t ninety b

Every Legislative Assembly of Ontario shall continue for. four years (sub-
ject to dissolution by the Li t-Governor) and no longer (Sec. 85),

Sec. 96, ' The Governor-General shall appoint the Judges of the Superir,
District and County . Courts in each Province, except those of the Courts of
Probate in Nova Scotia and New Brunswick.

Sec. 99, The Judges of the Superior Courts shall hold  office during good




‘ears from
o be sooner

after the
Fect at the
\djustment,

2]

h a number
Popnl&ﬁon
Number of

d the Lieu-
Instrument

t for cause
)
ixed and pro-

1 of the Lieu-
|y of Ontario.
vas composed
io (1887) the
en of which
4 three Mem-

ur years (sub-
c. 85),

'the Snperiﬂr.
the Courts of

'e during good

—99—

behavior, but shall be removed by the Governor-General on address of the
Senate and House of Commons,

/

The following extract from Bourinot's Constutional History of Canada, p.
172, emphasises a fact of supreme importance to every true Canadian. ¢The
independence of the judiciary has been for very many years recognized in
Canada, as one of the fundamental principles necessary to the conservation of
public liberty. The judges are not dependent on the mere will of the executive
in any essential respect, nor on the caprice of the people of a province for their
nomination and retention in office, as in many of the states of the American
republic. Their t is as d in Canada as in England, and their sal-
aries are not voted annually, but are charged permanently upon the civil list,
In case it is necessary to provide a salary, or increase of salary, for a judge,
the proper course is for the government to proceed by bill.”
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Adamstown,
Alsfeldt,
Altitude of County,
pe,

ix,
Agsintment of Officers,
Artemesia,

Attorney, Co.,
Auditors, Co.,

Aux Sable River,
Ayton
Badjeros,

Bailiffs,

Bass Lake,

Bay Shore,

Bay View,
Beatty Saugeen,
Beaver River,

Beaver Valley,
Bentinck,

Berkeley,

Big Head River,

Blue Mountains,
Bognor,

Boundaries,

Bourinot Dr,, Extract from,
Boyne River,

British N. A. Act,
Brooke,

Cape Rich,

Cedarville,

Centreville,
Chatsworth,
Clarksburg,

Clerk, County,

Clerk, Co, Court,
Clerk of Peace,
Clerks, Division Court,
Collegiate Institute,
Collingwood,

Colpoy’s Bay,
Commodore, Care,
Commons, Members of,
Constables,

Coroners,

.County Buildings,
County Court,

_County Officials,

.
2

24,

24,

Index.
B>VD»

Courts, Local,

C. P. Railway, 0
Craigleith, 14
Crown Attorney, 23
Cuckoo Valley, 15
Derby, 15
Desboro, 20
Distances, Table of, 26
Division Courts, 22
Dornoch, 16
Dromore, 16
Dufferin, 4
Dundalk, 12
Durham, 12
Durham Br. G. T. R,, 10
Durham Road, 5
Educational, 6
Egremont, 16
Electoral Divisions, 21
Elmwood, 14
Epping, 15
Eugenia, 13
Eugenia Falls, 8
Euphrasia, 15
Federal Districts, 21
Federal Parliament, 21
Feversham, ° 19
Flesherton, 13
Flesherton Station, 13
Gaoler, 23
Garafraxa, 2 4
General Sessions, 22

Georgian Bay & Lake Erie Ry., 10
Georgian Bay & Wellington Ry., 10
Gleason Creek, 18

Glenelg, 16
Goring, 15
Grand Trunk Ry., 10
Grand River, 2, 19
Gravel Roads, 4
Griersville, 20
Hanover, 13
Hay.vard’s Falls, 7
Heathcote, 14, 15
Hepworth, 18
Hesse, 3
High Schools, 6

History, Early, 3
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Page,

Hoath Head, Officials, County,
Hog’s Buck, 19, Orchardville,

Holland, Osprey.
Holland Centre, Owen~Sound,
Holstein, Br.C. P. R.,
Home District, Br. G. T. R,,
Hogeville, Oxenden,

Houses of Parliament, Park Head, 10,
Huckleberry Marsh, Parliament, Members of,
Indian River, Peabody,

Inglis’ Falls, Peace, Clerk of,
Inspectoral Divisions, Physical Features,
Irish Block, Police Magistrates,
Police Villages,
Portland Cement,
Justices of Peace, Position of Co.,
Keady, Pottawatamie R.,
Presqu’ Isle,
Pretty R.,

Priceville,

Proton,
Knechtel Furniture Co., Provisional Council,
Lake Shore Road, 4 Provincial Legislature,
Legislature, Provincial, Provincial Ridings,
Leith, Queen’s Valley,
Local Courts, Railways,
Luneburg, Ravenna,
Mad River, Registrars,
Magistrates, Registry Office,
Rich, Cape,

Rivers,

Rob Roy,
| Rocklyn,

Malancthon, | Rocky Saugeen,
‘Members of Parliament, p Sable R.,

Mooresburg, Sarawak,

Mountain Lake, Saugeen R.,
Manicipalities, Scenery,

Municipal Officers, Selectors of Jurors,
Nassau, Settlement of Co.,
Neustadt, Shallow Lake,
Newash Reserve, Sheriff,

Normanby, ! S8inghampton,
Northern Business College, b | Stipendiary Magistrates,
Northern Railway, Stour R.,

Northern Road, Stratford & Huron Ry.,
North Keppel, 8t. Vincent, b}
Nottawa, Strathaven,
Nottawasaga R., 2, 14 . Sullivan,
"Officials, Appointment of, 23, 25 Burface of Co.,
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22 Surrogate Court, 22 Villages,
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10 Toronto Line, - 5 Waterloo District, 3
18 Towns, 10 Wiarton Br. G, T. R., 10
: 10, 19 Townshigs, 13 Williamsford, 20, 21
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¢ THE MAP AND SCHOOL -

@ <~ JUPPLY C2. L'T’D, ¥
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Publiskers of CANADIAN SERIES of SCHOOL WALL MAPS.
3
THE MAPS of this series are beautifully colored and

revised todate. Towns and natural features have

each a special character of lettering. Hills are

printed in different color from outline, giving
greater clearness, Coast lines are bold so as to be easily
seen in the school room. Mounted by expert mechanics
on strong cotton with rollar and moulding. The series
consists of Dominion of Canada, size 5 feet x 9 feet;
World in Hemispheres, sizs 6 feet 6 in. x 9 ft.; Eastern
and Western Hemispheres of above mounted separately if
desired. Europe, Asia, Africa, America, North America,
South America, size 56 x 47 inches. British Isles, size
5 ft. 6 in. x 4 ft. 4 in.United States, size 5 ft.5 in. x 4 ft.

Most complete stock always on band of Astronomical,

Classical, Physical, Scriptural, Ancient, Botanical, Phil-
osophical and Physiological Cliarts and Maps.

CANADIAN - SERIES - GLOBES.

- General School Sup'- % MANUFACTURERS AND IM-

; ‘ PORTERS OF CHEMICAL AND
~ plies at Lowest-Prices. . PHYSICAL APPARATUS, &c.

WRITE FOR CATALOGUE.

Sy, & W
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To Attend The
o i

OWEN SOUND, ONT.,
If You Desire to got A Good Business Edu.ation.

Hundreds of young men and women have taken a business course
during the past ten years who are now ful in busi or
filling lucrative positions. The business course of study is by far
the most thorough and complete in Canada, There is as much in
a junior department as in the entire course of many of the so-call-

ed business colleges. Our short hand course is thorough and
complete.

Send for a copy of the Annual A t taining full particul It is sent
{ree to any address,

C. A. FLEMING, - - - PRINCIPAL.

o 4

R 5 @ NN
JEWELLER,

AGNEW, P | mnevsons,
WeCasear

ME AF OR D, CONVEYANCING.

’ b ALwAYS oN HAND A LARGE SUPPLY OF

ScrooL Books AND ScHOOL SUPPLIES,

Teachers and School Officers will find it Profitable to Call Before
Purchasing Elsewhere.

G20 e PRICES RIGHT.
icEmerk. Remember The Place_ o>

MONEY TO LOAN,

LOCAL MANAGER ~ AGNEW'S BOOK STORE,

Beue ‘TererHone Co. Y SMEAFORD.
-




Jeachers! Jrustees!!

4 % DO YOU USE
gg MONTHLY SCHOOL REPORTS?
A
Whether you do or not, send to this office for a sample of these aids to efficiency
and progress, They are the thermometers of the school, We have sup-
plied Durham Chatsworth, Orchardville and other schools.
®0o0
SCHOOL OR PRIVATE STATIONERY
Supplied in Blank or Printed, Teachers’ Agreements 6c. per pair at the
OrrFiCEOF . . .

Tl\e G(I"Qg quizw : PAPER,PUBLISHED IN

DURHAM, ONT.
CHAS. RAMAGE, Prop.

OB

PRES‘TON
4 o;n

‘\\_/ W

COURT HOUSE &
DRW STORE FITTINGS -




THE-—

kowmt, | Ontario Muataal Life ™ "““.’:.

Established 1870.

Heap OFFiCE: WATERLOO, ONT.

PORTS? Dominion Deposit, $100,000.
Assurance in Force Jan. 1st, 1895 . ... . ... .. ...coviiiinins $18,767,698 7
New Assurances written in 1894 .. ... ... .. ..o 2,881,854

fcienc Cash Income for 180d v it o iesie: T el S A e 6569, 989

s to efficiency Reserve for Security of Policy-holders. Dec. 81, 94, ... .. ...., 2,566,560

Ve have sup- Ax Ko
Assets, December 31, 1894, "/ L UL o 2,865,560
Suarplus over all Lmbnhtles, December 81, 1894 " ' 277,747

The 20-Year SURVIV RSHIP DlzTE ge TION POLICY now offered
embraces the newest ututen apd e best form of Protection and In-
vestment money i +Jt has no equal. Guaranteed values, at-
tractive options an llbenl conditions.

SPECIAL FEATURES

1, Cash and Paid- u}) Values guaranteed on each Policy. 2. All dividends belong to
and are vaid to Policy holders only. 8. Norestriction on travel, residence or occu-

RY
¢ pair at the

pation. 4. Death claims paid at onece on completion of claim pnpers
IHARENAD I Stability, §1. E, Bewman, Wm. Hendry, W.H. Riddel, p Progress.
M, ONT, i PRES,, MANAGER, SEC'Y A AT
HIGH SGHOOL PUPILS -

—IT WILL PAY YOU TO DEAL AT—

@7%%4’ Book Store

OWEN SOUND.

Always A full Stock of up-no-date Texts a.nd Supphes kept, and

TRUSTEES & TEACHERS

Should remember that for Maps, Globes, Chalk, Fooluap.
Tnk, Pencils. Chalk Erasers, and Public School Supplies
of all kinds IRELAND LEADS THE VAN w1th The Best
Goods and Lowest Prices.

ALL OONOI‘R#.D TAK. NOTE W.' SELL BOOKS, STATIONERY, Fucv eooac.

SPORTING GOODS, WALL PAPER, WINDOW SHADES, BOV§’ WAGONS,
BABY CARRIAGES 4C. AT CLOSEST PRlﬁll.
4

LT WL K IRELAND' & Co.

NEXT DOOR TO BANK OF HAMILTON, OWEN S80UND.




']'l\z Public School

Drawing Manual

A COMPLETE QUIDE TO SELF~
INSTRUOTION IN DRAWING,

By Dr. J. H. McFaul

PRICE 80 CENTS.

Invaluable to Teachers attending Model Schools, Normal Schools,
Art Schools, and the School of Pedagogy. both in the pre-
paration of Drawing for the Class-Room and for their

FINAL EXAMINATION.

This Manual supplies a long felt want to those engaged in
TEAOHING DRAWING.

A most holptul work to pupils in High Schools, Private Schools and the senior de-
partment of Public Schools.

THE MANUAL I8 DIVIDED INTO TWO PARTS.

PART 1.—Oontains the definitions of terms employed, and full explanations.
supplemented with ninetsen mnsmtive charts (white on blsek) for teaching draw-
ing, (a) to dictation, (b) fromn printed copies, (¢) geometric design by {lllllldl)n-
ahoo zd)) oon;:::t&mtlhsuonkot ln::uflorm- :nd ahoiilggpllu:gn:h n puotg cal

@) cons! oonorworlm‘n orn mal! eto., ading
re “g y of oumlnnﬂon pro loml h?“:g‘ - bl‘lhp“gm nt osfo %un‘nﬁ
o 040 for several years to n the Public and High 00)
oa.t‘l and Normal Schools in -{f 5ro of Ontario, ;

PART 11.—Contains &) the dra exercises in each six books of the
Public 8chool Dxa urse in th om of roblomn. wlth theh- dloutlon nnd
hints as to the su stages in hom, ‘;oo suggestive blems

wnlnu.lwmnﬁo lonueh ofth k, or on the black or
on blank paper, at the option of

- THE CANADA PUBLISHING ( 0, LINITED,

9 WarrinaTox 81. WEs?, TORONTO.
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BOOKS
Published By The

ARMSTRONG'S ARITHMETICAL PRoB-

LEMs.—For use in senior classes.
7th Bdition $0 26

Book-REEPING BLANK No. 7, for Pub-
lic School Leaving Examination,
gr?ued u ;der the direction of
. A, Wismer, B.A. 0
Book-KEEPING BLANK No. 8,—For Pri-
mary, Examination and part 1.
Commereial Diploma Course with
notes. Prepared under the direc.
tion of J. A. Wismer B.A. 0 85

BOURINOT'S HOW CANADA 18 GOVERN-
£D,—Cloth

OHAMBERLAIN'S CANADIAN BIRDS.
Ihustrated--An account of a number
of the Common Birds of Eastern
Canada, their plumage,nests.eggs
habits, etc,, by Montague Cham-
berlain. Boards 030

CoPyY BooK OF BusiNRss FORMs AND
AccouxTs.—No. 1. For Senior 8rd
and Junior 4th Book Classes. By
McAllister, Clare & Slater. 010

CoPY BooK oF BUsINEeés FORMS AND
ACCOUNTA. No. 2.—For 4th class
and Entrance to Collegiate Insti
tuces and Hi h Bohooll. By Mo-
ALLISTER & 010

CoPry Boox or Buamu FORMS AND
Accounts. No 3--With Forms of
Cheques,Duft.r Bills of Exchange
ete., in tint. For Collegiate Inst-
itutes and High Schools. By Mo -
Allister, Clare and Slater. 010

CUTHBERT's EXBRCISES IN ARITHEMET-
xo Part 1, 256, Part 8,35c. Ans's

groblems contai: in Parts 1
and 8 of Cuthbert's Bxercises 025

FLETCHER's BUsINEss an FOR

dLIST OF opp 53

l"k‘\ _ Joronto.
o

°?

Orlof which they secure Special Editions. Prices Subject to Change without notice.
>0 '

GRADUATED ExmRrcises.—For Gram-
matical Analysis snd parsing, b
J. A. Freeman, B.A &)
MARTIN'S Slmplanulu in Arithmetic
For use in 2nd Book Classes
MARTIN's Student’'s History Notes.—0 15
MEROHANT's Botanical Note Book.—
New Edition, illustrated, Contain-
+ ing blanks for description ol
plants, leaves and flowers

Moir's Map phy.-—conulninu
12 coloured Maps 0 9
Moir's British tory Notes ow

Public School Speller and Word

ook.—Enlarged Edition. part

IV. contains Latin and Greek
roots. By G, W.Johnston 0%

SMITR'® LAVGUAGE EXERCISES.—For
gupﬂs in 1st, 2nd, and Srd Booko

Btories From Canadian thory-—
Some of which are based u
Stories of New France, by lu
Machar and T. G, Marquis. The
volume contains 17 stories from
Cartier to Tecumseh, Edited by
T. G. Marquis, M.A. Boards, 0925

Strang's Exercises In False 8
and other forms of Bad Engllnh.
By H. 1. Strang,B.A.

smi s Practical Exercises in Bnc-
lish Composition 085

White's Practical Problems in Arith-

metlo.—!’or 1s#Bnd and 8rd classes
New Edition. Cloth,

White's Progressive Problems in Ari-

CoMMEBROIAL CLASSES.

thmetic.—For Fourth class md
Entrance candidates

Can be obtained from all Booksellers or upon receipt of Price, from

The Gopp Clark Co. L'd., Toronto.
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JCHOOL BOOKS ' ¢ A full Stock, Includ-
: —AND— $ ing.Liquid Slating,Cray-

VSCI‘IOOL SUPPLIES, ¢ cas, o. kept on hend.

Estimates furnished and prompa Attention
Given all Orders for

WGP@, Globes and Other Reguisites

AT LOWEST POSSIBLE CITY PRICES.

We carry the largest stock in South Grey of Prasentation and
Prize Books of All kinds.

ORDERS BY MAIL SOLICITED.

Special Discount to Teachers and School Boards.

MACFARLANE & (0., DURHAM,

DRUGGISTS 4 BOOKSELLERS.
Oceah and Railway Tickets to all points at lowest rates. - Write Us.

Ye W |

%Qé‘\ )Em 303 Yonge Street,
5 o

§§" g TORONTO.

$boppe

| SELL NEW AND SECOND HAND BOOKS,

Evi ind of Book that Teachers require.  -Public and High
Schy ooks, University and College Books, Books. for School
of Pedagogy and Normal:School, in fact any Educational
Book may be had by sending a post card to the ;address below,

AT TEN PER CENT, OFF THE REQULAR PRICE POST PAID.

FRANK PORTER, 92 Yonea Sto
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GAGE'S - -
‘Excelsior’ School Globes. =

e 00 BEAUTIFULLY PRINTED

[ B BN ] A . « IN COLORS,
i The water is printed in blue and ocean currents in while.

The principal lines of ocean steam communication and the
'submarine telegrapk cables are clearly indirared.

On Handsome Cast-Iron and Walnut Stands. Diameters—6, 9and 12 in._

Only upon the Globe can the Priczs Or ‘Excarsion’

teacher present to the pupil the GLosss.

whole earth in its natural form, ' 6-inch, plain $2.00
The Gloheis conssquently a most o 6-inch, full meridian 8.00
important, and indeed, an INDIs- g'_ingg' ?lﬁm At g-g
PENSABLE AUXILIARY in geograph- ' 9—1: o fll:“ ;‘:“n te(lll ok
ical instruction. = The teacher o 19-inch. plain, mounted 7.50
needs one and cannot get along 12-inch, full meridian 9.00
without it. ' 12-inch, full mounted 14,00

-
LIBERAL DISCOUNT TO THE TRADE. ILLUSTRATED CATALOGUE
MAILED FREE ON APPLICATION.

\Q s
GQAGE'’S 'EXCELSIOR’ SERIES OF

— WALL MAPS.

Four Prize Medals. Internatioral Exhibition London, '84 and '85.
1 A

An.

AmEuro e, North America, Mercator's World, Asia, South America, England,
ca,

emita)heres Scotland, Ireland, Australia, United States [including
Mexico and principal parts of Canada.]

New Map of the Dumiinion aad New Map of Ontario. Jmst Issued. Price
#4.60each. All the leading cities and towns are shown by bright red spots.
Only such names are found on the map as are required for teaching. The
different Railway Systems of Canada are shown by clear and distinctive

markings. Outlines and rivers are printed in blue and hills in brown, leaving
the black solely for names. .

THE W. J. GAGE €0, L'T,, TORONTO,
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MAP OF GREY COUNTY.

=0

Every School as well as every home in Grey should have one of these
Maps. The Mapshows every concession, side road, farm, river, creek &c,

o

in the county. It

’

e,

It is a big paper for a 8. Address,

JOHN MITCHELL,

was Copyrighted
according to act of
Parliament of Can-
ada in the year
1894 by J. Mitchell
avthe Department
of Agriculture.
Anyone infringing
on this copyright
will be prosecuted.

PRICE

| or nap

$3.00.
< T
If Y wish anup
2 date newsrajer

in addition to Y
home paper selﬁ
for

The 1

Hanover | :
Post -

HANOVER, ONT.
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